

ILLINOIS REGISTER

ILLINOIS RACING BOARD

NOTICE OF ADOPTED AMENDMENTS

- 1) Heading of the Part: Security and Admissions
- 2) Code Citation: 11 Ill. Adm. Code 1325
- 3)

<u>Section Numbers:</u>	<u>Proposed Actions:</u>
1325.50	Amendment
1325.70	Amendment
1325.100	Repealed
- 4) Statutory Authority: Authorized by Section 9(b) of the Illinois Horse Racing Act of 1975 [230 ILCS 5/9(b)].
- 5) Effective Date of Rule: immediate upon adoption
- 6) Does this rulemaking contain an automatic repeal date? No
- 7) Does this rulemaking contain incorporations by reference? No
- 8) A copy of the adopted amendments, including any material incorporated by reference, is on file in the agency's central office and is available for public inspection.
- 9) Notice of Proposal Published in the *Illinois Register*: 48 Ill. Reg. 8453; June 14, 2024
- 10) Has JCAR issued a Statement of Objections to this rule? No
- 11) Differences between Proposal and Final Version: No changes were made.
- 12) Have all the changes agreed upon by the agency and JCAR been made as indicated in the letter issued by JCAR? Yes
- 13) Will this proposed rulemaking replace any emergency rule currently in effect? No
- 14) Are there any other rulemakings pending on this Part? No
- 15) Summary and Purpose of Rulemaking: This proposed rulemaking updates Administrative Code Part 1325 to allow track operators more flexibility when dealing with unauthorized individuals in the stable area, allows the adopted rules to reflect modern operating procedures more accurately at Illinois race tracks, corrects the amount of admission tax paid by the track operator to reflect the current amount of 15 cents and removes language referencing the outdated practice of issuing admission tickets.

ILLINOIS REGISTER

ILLINOIS RACING BOARD

NOTICE OF ADOPTED AMENDMENTS

- 16) Information and questions regarding this adopted rule shall be directed to:

Bob Denneen
Illinois Racing Board
555 West Monroe
Suite 1700-S
Chicago, Illinois 60661

(312) 814-5017
Bob.Denneen@Illinois.gov

The full text of the Adopted Amendments begins on the next page.

ILLINOIS REGISTER

ILLINOIS RACING BOARD

NOTICE OF ADOPTED AMENDMENTS

TITLE 11: ALCOHOL, HORSE RACING, LOTTERY, AND VIDEO GAMING
SUBTITLE B: HORSE RACING
CHAPTER I: ILLINOIS RACING BOARD
SUBCHAPTER f: RULES AND REGULATIONS OF HARNESS RACING

PART 1325
SECURITY AND ADMISSIONS

Section

1325.10	Stable Enclosures Fenced
1325.20	Report of Arrival and Departure of Horses
1325.30	Stable Area Security
1325.40	Policing of Premises
1325.50	Admission to Parts of Premises
1325.60	Identification Cards and Badges (Repealed)
1325.70	Admission Statements
1325.80	Admissions Tax
1325.90	Admissions Records
1325.100	Board Approval of Tickets and Credentials (Repealed)
1325.110	Credential and Ticket Specimens
1325.120	Tax Exempt Credentials
1325.130	Tax Exempt Credentials Report (Repealed)
1325.140	Track Responsible for Credentials
1325.150	Board Access to Records
1325.160	Turnstiles and Electronic Scanning Devices
1325.170	Admission to Track
1325.180	Revocation of Credentials
1325.190	Inspections and Searches (Repealed)
1325.200	Investigative Authority

AUTHORITY: Authorized by Section 9(b) of the Illinois Horse Racing Act of 1975 [230 ILCS 5].

SOURCE: Published in Rules and Regulations of Harness Racing, (original date not cited in publication); amended October 25, 1973, filed November 26, 1973; amended March 14, 1975, filed and effective March 27, 1975; amended May 9, 1975, filed May 15, 1975; amended at 4 Ill. Reg. 41, p. 164, effective September 26, 1980; codified at 5 Ill. Reg. 10955; amended at 14 Ill. Reg. 17665, effective October 16, 1990; amended at 15 Ill. Reg. 5748, effective April 4, 1991; amended at 31 Ill. Reg. 15099, effective November 1, 2007; amended at 32 Ill. Reg. 16498, effective October 1, 2008; amended at 35 Ill. Reg. 8504, effective May 23, 2011; amended at 37

ILLINOIS REGISTER

ILLINOIS RACING BOARD

NOTICE OF ADOPTED AMENDMENTS

Ill. Reg. 20406, effective December 16, 2013; amended at 48 Ill. Reg. 18275, effective Dec 12 2024.

Section 1325.50 Admission to Parts of Premises

- a) Only the following listed persons shall be entitled to enter the stable area of a race track operator: members, officers and employees of the Board who must show their identification cards; management and employees performing duties therein; racing officials; police officers; owners, trainers, grooms and others performing official duties in the stable area and who possess a valid license from the Board.
- b) Except that the race track operator may authorize the entry of other persons, subject to the following minimum conditions:
 - 1) that such authorized persons be required to sign a daily guest log, and record the time of entry and the time of departure; and
 - 2) that such authorized persons be required to indicate the name of the person whom they are visiting.
- c) The race track operator shall adopt such rules and procedures as deemed necessary to protect the security of the stable area and to prevent the entry of unauthorized persons to that portion of the premises.
- d) Any person violating this section rule shall be evicted from the licensed premises by the race track operator and thereafter may be denied admission as a patron or otherwise to any portion of the licensed premises.

(Source: Amended at 48 Ill. Reg. 18275, effective Dec 12 2024)

Section 1325.70 Admission Statements

Each race track operator must prepare weekly~~daily~~ an itemized, certified admission statement showing:

- a) A summary, ~~separating clubhouse and grandstand,~~ showing number of fully paid admissions, complimentary admissions, ~~service charge tickets~~ and tax free admission for officials, corporation officers, press, horsemen, employees, racing officials and/or other persons entering on tax exempt admissions; ~~also, the total amount from fully paid tickets, from complimentary or service charge tickets, and~~

ILLINOIS REGISTER

ILLINOIS RACING BOARD

NOTICE OF ADOPTED AMENDMENTS

~~all other amounts received on account of admissions or taxes and the totals therefrom of the amount due the federal government and~~

b) the amount due ~~to~~ the ~~State~~state on account of the ~~15~~40-cents admission ~~ticket~~ tax. [See 230 ILCS 5/25\(a\)](#).

b) ~~Such summary shall also include a report of the daily turnstile reconciliations with the actual count using number and location of turnstiles, with notations listing discrepancies, if any.~~

~~(Editor's Note: Section 25 of the Illinois Horse Racing Act of 1975 (Ill. Rev. Stat. 1979 ch. 8 par. 37-25) now provides for a 15 cents admission tax instead of 40 cents)~~

(Source: Amended at 48 Ill. Reg. 18275, effective Dec 12 2024)

Section 1325.100 Board Approval of Tickets and Credentials (Repealed)

a) ~~The secretary of the Board must approve all race track operators' proposed tickets and credentials before an order can be placed with a printer or supplier.~~

b) ~~All tax exempt tickets or credentials of admission for a race meeting shall be designed to include a serial or control number and code letter or number designating classification. These credentials and/or tickets are to be designed so that they cannot be used for admission more than once on any one racing day and applicable only to the current racing day.~~

c) ~~All tax exempt tickets and credentials shall carry in bold type: "Not transferable and will be revoked if transferred."~~

d) ~~The following shall be printed on all taxable admission tickets and credentials including complimentary, service charge and/or reduced rates of admission: "state tax 40 cents."~~

~~(Editor's Note: Section 25 of the Illinois Horse Racing Act of 1975 (Ill. Rev. Stat. 1979, chap. 8 par. 37-25) now provides for a 15 cents admission tax instead of 40 cents)~~

(Source: Repealed at 48 Ill. Reg. 18275, effective Dec 12 2024)